
08/11/2015 Casper City Council Work Session Minutes Page 1 of 4 
 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Tuesday, August 11, 4:30 p.m. 

Casper City Hall 
Council Meeting Room 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Penny Plaza Ribbon Cutting 
2. Discussion About Dead Trees Throughout the City and Potential Removal Strategies 
3. Timeline for Contract Reinstatement 
4. Conditional Use Permit Appeal, 1134 North Lincoln St. 
5. Future Agenda Review 
6. Around the Table 

 
COUNCIL WORK SESSION – August 11, 2015 

 
 Councilmembers and community members attended a ribbon cutting ceremony at 4:30 
p.m. at Art 321 for the opening of Penny Plaza.  Holly Turner, Executive Director of the Casper 
Artists’ Guild, described the history of the location beginning as a Fruit Warehouse and ending 
as the art gallery.  She acknowledged the financial assistance received from the Optional One 
Cent tax, and shared about the building of Penny Plaza to honor that contribution.  She then 
introduced Mayor Powell.  Mayor Powell thanked everyone for attending, acknowledged the 
efforts of Liz Becher, City of Casper Community Development Director, in this project.  He then 
read a proclamation for the occasion, and announced that Council would return to City Hall for 
the work session.  
 
 Mayor Powell called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. with the following 
Councilmembers present: Councilmen Cathey, Hopkins, Johnson, Mundell, Pacheco, Sandoval 
and Schlager.   
 
 Mayor Powell began the discussion of dead trees in the community and asked Liz 
Becher, Casper Community Development Director, to address the issue.  Ms. Becher stated that 
both the 2013 storm Atlas, and a cold snap last fall had damaged or killed many of the trees in 
the community.  She introduced the following community members:  Tom Heald, a local 
garden/landscaping business owner; Donna Hoffman, University of Wyoming Horticulture 
Extension Educator; and Dan Coryell, City of Casper Parks Superintendent.  She further 
explained that only 15% of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds can be used to 
support public services and that much of that is already specifically used for bus tokens.   
 
 Councilman Sandoval asked how City assistance would need to be structured to aid 
citizens, based on legalities. City Attorney Luben explained that the Wyoming State Constitution 
clearly does not allow public funds to help private citizens, especially with private property.  
Councilmembers then discussed the City’s responsibility to help the community, what the 
insurance options might be, and the use of CDBG funds for bus tokens versus assisting with 
clearing trees.   
 



08/11/2015 Casper City Council Work Session Minutes Page 2 of 4 
 

 At this time Mike Lougee, a local insurance agent, joined the meeting and provided 
Council with an overview of homeowner insurance policies.  He indicated that most insurance 
policies do not cover what is considered to be routine maintenance, and that often the care of 
trees both alive and dead fall into that category.  
 
 Councilman Johnson asked how significant the problem is.  Mr. Heald indicated that the 
City had cleared roughly 6,000 tons of branches in 2013 when Atlas initially damaged many 
trees.  He estimated that another 50,000 tons or more of dead trees are still standing.  He 
suggested looking into having the situation be declared a disaster.  He also stated that the size 
and weight of many of these trees will cause heavy damage to property and persons as they fall. 
 
 Ms. Hoffman agreed that the damage to these trees will become more obvious as they 
decay. She also stated that different insurance policies and circumstances may not always 
reimburse people for damages, and it could be quite costly for some citizens. Councilman 
Sandoval asked about recommendations for tree replanting.  Ms. Hoffman said that the City 
already has a good list, and that trees as well as further information are available in the 
community. 
 
 Councilman Pacheco expressed concern about citizens not being able to afford to have 
trees removed and urged Council to come up with a game plan. 
 
 Mr. Heald recognized the City for the initial 2013 cleanup after the storm.  He also stated 
that a community education program would make citizens aware of the hazards that exist, which 
would be very beneficial. 
 
 Councilman Hopkins pointed out that the dead junipers in town are a fire hazard and 
wondered if the City might offer assistance in the hauling away or collection of these materials, 
much like what had occurred in 2013. He also asked if the Governor couldn’t be contacted, and 
the situation be declared a disaster. Mayor Powell also asked about the possibility of reaching out 
to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). Acting City Manager V.H. McDonald 
stated that working with FEMA is typically a long process and involves being reimbursed, but is 
something that would be a good idea to look into.   
 
 Council further discussed the hazards of removing trees without the assistance of 
professionals and the need to replace trees.  Mr. Coryell and Pete Meyers, City of Casper 
Assistant Director of Public Services, briefly described the street tree program that the City 
offers.   Mr. Meyers stated that on a given year the City plants roughly 160 trees and that 
replacement of lost trees would take a long time.  City staff has estimated that some 4,000 trees 
in the community are dead.  City Attorney Luben discussed how trees and limbs can be 
considered a public nuisance if they become a public safety issue. 
 
 Council had further questions about the street tree program and Mr. Meyers addressed 
them. Council further discussed options including having the City pickup or collect materials, 
educational programs, and FEMA or a disaster declaration.  Councilman Pacheco recommended 
a task force. Mayor Powell inquired about assessments or consultation services. Mr. Meyers 



08/11/2015 Casper City Council Work Session Minutes Page 3 of 4 
 

indicated that the City already provides some assessments and Ms. Hoffman stated that there are 
other arborists available, beyond what the City employees, that could also assist.   
 
 Council agreed that further recommendations from staff are needed and Councilman 
Pacheco offered to become a member of the task force.  Acting City Manager McDonald 
indicated staff would further research options, and would also reach out to other interested 
parties (i.e. Rocky Mountain Power).   
 
 Mayor Powell then introduced the next topic on the agenda, timeline for construction 
reinstatement.  He stated that Council has been asked how long the City would deny a contractor 
further bids after determining there have been performance problems.   
 
 Acting City Manager McDonald introduced Judy Studer, attorney at law, to present on 
this matter.  Ms. Studer briefly explained the Statutes that Council is bound by when evaluating 
the low bidder.  Generally the requirements come down to a reasonable determination of a 
responsible bidder.   The situation with Hedquist Construction is very unique because the City 
has never had liquated damages assessed for such delays, and it has been 15 years since a bond 
claim has been initiated against a contractor in this manner.  She concluded by stating that the 
decision is completely at the discretion of the Council. 
 
 City Attorney Luben then stated that in 2014 staff had been directed to propose 
qualifications for letting a contract, he passed out a copy of the terms and briefly explained each. 
The overall proposed criteria include: being pre-qualified with WYDOT; providing information 
for a five year look back period; submittal of references; being in financial good standing for 
accounts with the City; and having no outstanding commitments that would prevent the job from 
being completed.  The criteria would vary slightly based on the size and type of project being let. 
City Attorney Luben acknowledged that selection of bidders is at the Council’s sole discretion 
and that there are many factors to consider. 
 
 Council then discussed change orders and how costs vary with projects.  Andrew 
Beamer, City of Casper Public Services Director, answered some questions about how much 
costs vary and indicated that some projects may come in under cost while others may cost more 
than anticipated, through no fault of the contractor.  Council also debated about the number of 
contractors that may or may not be able to meet the proposed criteria, and the possible 
elimination of good contractors with the criteria.  Further discussion included the possibility of 
phasing in a contractor with a poor performance record, and the real cost of delays on large 
projects.  Council also discussed the difference between pre-bid qualifications and the general 
criteria for bidders, which would time the evaluation of the bidders differently and has proven 
invaluable on very specialized projects. Next, Council discussed the possible timeline for 
implementing any changes to the current process, and if any communication or explanation is 
needed in the meantime for upcoming bids. Ms. Studer pointed out that previously there was 
never a non-qualified list, rather Council acted in a discretionary manner as things came forward.  
Council requested that the criteria be re-visited and evaluated, with input from the local 
contractors, and brought forward at a later time. 
 



08/11/2015 Casper City Council Work Session Minutes Page 4 of 4 
 

 At this time Acting City Manager McDonald asked Ms. Becher to present updated 
information on the conditional use permit appeal.  Ms. Becher introduced those present, 
including the applicant, and opened things up for questions.  Councilman Sandoval inquired 
about the property and how future sale of the land could occur.  Craig Collins, City of Casper 
Planner, indicated that the land could be platted or a conditional use permit could be granted.  
Both would be tied to the property and a title search would show record of this.  Councilman 
Mundell asked if any resolution had come since the last meeting.   Aaron Kloke, City of Casper 
Associate Planner, explained that options were explored, with all but the conditional use permit 
being too costly. 
 
 Shelley LeClere, City of Casper Code Enforcement Supervisor, shared her history of 
experience with this type of issue, as well as the process to get to this point in the appeal process.  
City of Casper Planning and Zoning Commissioner, Don Redder, explained why he had voted in 
favor of granting the conditional use permit, being that it was a reasonable compromise in a 
difficult situation. Mayor Powell asked if there were further questions at this time.  There being 
none Council moved to the next item on the agenda, which is review of the agenda for the next 
Council meeting. 
 
 Acting City Manager McDonald presented Council with a review of the future agenda.  
Council directed staff to establish a public hearing for the motor vehicle noise ordinance, and to 
remove from the consent agenda the third reading of the ordinance allowing chickens. Council 
also asked for further review of the agreement with the Community Action Partnership at a work 
session. 
 
 Council discussed the process to fill the Ward II vacancy, and it was agreed that all 
members would look through the applications and bring forward their top choices.  Council 
would then meet in Executive Session to select the top candidates for interviews, the number 
dependent upon the volume of applications and how many top ranking individuals are in 
common.   Council would then schedule interviews and make an appointment at the next Council 
meeting.   
 
 Councilmembers reported updates for each of their respective board meetings. 
 

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 

CITY OF CASPER, WYOMING 
ATTEST:      A Municipal Corporation 
 
 
 
             
V. H. McDonald     Charlie Powell 
City Clerk      Mayor 
 
 
 


